
IMN 2025 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING 
NOVEMBER 17, 2025 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TITLE .......................................................................................... PAGES 
Meeting Agenda ....................................................................................  2 
IMN Board President's Report .............................................................  3-5 
Rational for Curriculum Revision .........................................................  6-7 
Curriculum Overview ........................................................................  8-11 
DEIJB Report ....................................................................................... 12 
Minutes 2024 Membership Meeting ................................................... 13-18 
By-Law Recommended Changes ........................................................... 19 
Nominations ........................................................................................ 20 
Board and Staff Bios ........................................................................ 21-23 
2024 Financial Audit ............................................................................. 24 
2025 Annual Appeal ............................................................................. 25 
IMN Mission Statement ........................................................................ 26 

1



IMN Annual Membership Meeting 
November 17th, 2025 

3pm-5pm ET 
3pm Gathering 

3:00-3:10 Prayer & Opening Reflection 

3:10-3:15 Opening Business Session, Establishing Quorum 

3:15-3:25 Organizational Update from the IMN Board President 

3:25-3:35 Overview of New IMN Curriculum 

3:35-3:45 Update on DEIJB 

3:45-4:15 Business Items 

A. 2024 Annual Membership Meeting Minutes
B. By-law Revision Regarding Quorum
C. Nominations Slate
D. Announcement of 2026 Officers
E. Financial Overview

4:15-4:20 Appreciation for Board Members leaving 

Marvin Morgan and Holly MillerShank 

4:20-4:45 Break Out Questions & Feedback  

▪ What drew you to attend our membership meeting today?
▪ What do you long for regarding our Network?
▪ How have you engaged, or imagine engaging, with the new

curriculum?

Please select a note taker and submit your group’s thoughts in the chat 

4:45-5:00 Closing Worship, In Memoriam, Transition of IMN Board President 

2



IMN Board President’s Report 

November 2025 

Dear IMN Members, 

Thank you for your dedication and support throughout this year. Your engagement—through 
presence, volunteerism, financial contributions, and prayers—has been essential to IMN’s 
mission. 

Key Highlights of 2025 
The most significant milestone was the launch of our new curriculum. Transformative in 
both content and delivery, these courses uphold IMN’s commitment to excellence in adult-
centered education. Our first cohort is completing Modules 1, 2, and 3—a major 
achievement that will strengthen transitional leaders and the communities they serve for 
years to come. 

While advancing curriculum development, the Board worked diligently on organizational 
priorities, addressing financial realities and planning for a sustainable future. This work 
would not have been possible without the steady leadership of Ellen and Crystal, whose 
knowledge and dedication are unmatched. We are also deeply grateful to Rev. Dr. Jonathan 
New for his leadership at the helm of IMN and for his continued dedication to the 
completion of the new curriculum.  

Leadership Transition and Financial Realities 
Despite the excellence of our new courses, enrollment has not met budget projections. 
Early in the year, Jonathan, practicing his own deep discernment, did not feel called to 
serve as Executive Director of IMN amid financial fragility and the changing landscape of 
transitional ministry. In March, the board received his resignation with regret. Since then, I 
have provided supplemental leadership with strong support from Crystal and Ellen. 

As we look forward to new executive leadership on the board after the Annual Business 
Meeting, we knew that the current arrangement was not feasible to carry forward, nor is it 
financially viable to hire a new Executive Director at this time.  

As a next step, the full Board has developed and approved a contracted position we are 
calling “Navigator”. The role of this individual is to help move forward the strategic goals of 
IMN across the organization. It is a contracted position, one year, renewable, with 
assessment after the first six months. It is not an Executive Director role, rather the 
Navigator will take strategic direction from the board and work to communicate those 
initiatives for the overall health of IMN. It is an internal search (meaning we would like to 
identify someone within IMN) funding for this role is included in the 2026 budget.  

3



Commitment to Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, Belonging, and Justice (DEIJB) 
The other significant investment IMN undertook this year was enacting our strategic plan’s 
call for Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, Belonging and Justice. As a diverse, multi-faith, 
international organization we knew we needed to do work both internally as IMN as well as 
integrating best practices on DEIJB so that those who participate in our educational 
offerings feel equipped to address areas of diversity and inclusion in the settings in which 
they lead. A DEIJB task-group is being lead by Jenny Stephen, in concert with Betty Pries of 
Creedence & Co. Thank you to the members who took the survey, focus groups will begin in 
January of 2026.  

Program Updates 
In the midst of navigating staffing changes, monitoring finances, and evaluating our 
strategic plan, the board decided to retire “Chat with Us”. Originally started during the 
pandemic, Chat with Us, was an opportunity for conversations on the changing landscape 
of transitional ministry. As participant numbers declined in Chat with Us over the years they 
were offered less frequently, with growth in Virtual Support Groups, and the availability to 
be in touch with board members directly in times of crisis, we decided it was time to end 
this offering. Our hopes in doing so are that a formal coaching/mentoring program would 
be a future project of IMN.   

Looking Ahead 
As I conclude my term, I am delighted that Rev. Cynthia Vermillion-Foster will assume the 
role of Board President. I hold in my heart three priorities for IMN: 

1. Continued rollout and support of the new curriculum.

2. Development and implementation of recommendations from the DEIJB task force.

3. Strengthening organizational health through financial oversight and a cohesive
branding and marketing strategy.

Gratitude 
In closing, I want to again specifically thank Crystal and Ellen for their immense skills and 
dedication to the wellbeing of our organization, IMN would not be the IMN we know and 
love without them. My appreciation extends as well to the members of the Board of 
Directors, particularly the Executive Committee for the additional discernment and energy 
put in this year, I feel like I owe you all a crate of chocolates and overflowing mugs of coffee, 
you are the best.  

Deep gratitude as well to faculty who have set the standard for equipping transitional 
leaders and to the teams, including the Annual Conference Team, who did amazing work 
this year. Most of all, as I step down from this leadership role, I want to thank those who 

4



have believed in IMN for what it is and for what it can be. Transition is taking place all 
around us, we have an opportunity to train and equip not only ourselves but an entirely new 
generation of transitional leaders to handle with grace, skill and confidence the wild and 
precious future that is being birthed.  

Trusting in God’s transformative work, 

Holly 

Rev. Holly MillerShank 
IMN Board President 

5



IMN – January 23, 2025 

What Does IMN Mean By Transitional Leadership? 

When IMN speaks of transitional leadership we mean the kind of leadership that helps an 
organization face change and manage transitions for the best possible outcomes. But there’s 
more to this understanding, how it was shaped, and what it involves.  

IMN was founded over 40 years ago to equip and support leaders of congregaDons who serve 
on a temporary basis during a pastoral vacancy – interim ministers. No mere placeholders, 
interim ministers were trained to apply organizaDonal development principles and bring 
targeted leadership to the Dme of pastoral turnover.  

The reason for this was simple: Research showed that congregaDons were parDcularly 
vulnerable at the Dme of a change of pastors, oIen losing vitality and direcDon, creaDng greater 
disrupDon and seJng them back years. However, this significant change – when managed well 
– could have a very different outcome. CongregaDons might actually thrive as they entered a 
new chapter with new clergy leadership when interims helped to guide the transiDon process. 
This wasn’t magic but the intenDonal engagement of the congregaDon in processes of self-
discovery, visioning, and corporate discernment as they came to the task of selecDng and 
preparing for new clergy leadership.  
 
IMN sDll trains and supports intenDonal interim ministers. However, over the years we’ve 
recognized that there are many significant moments of change in a congregaDon’s life that 
benefit from excellent management beyond a change of clergy leadership, including: 
organizaDonal sustainability, staff and mission right-sizing, assessing and dealing with faciliDes 
issues, shared ministry and amalgamaDons (e.g., mergers, unions, federaDons, yoking), closure 
and legacy consideraDon, and more. There are also other faith-based organizaDons where this 
leadership may be applied. And leaders now serve in a variety of ways to guide transiDons – as 
interims, consultants, coaches; as seUled clergy; as lay leaders volunteering or employed; full-
Dme or part-Dme, in person or virtually. In fact, because of the unprecedented magnitude and 
pace of change that’s being experienced, this kind of leadership is even more important today.  
 
For these reasons and more, these days, we speak of transi.onal leadership – using change-
management knowledge, skills, and approaches to provide leadership for healthy transiDons 
and faithful transformaDons.   
 
No maUer the seJng or circumstance, transiDonal leadership begins with some significant 
change to be managed, for example: pastoral vacancy, membership and aUendance decline or 
increase, re-examining staffing structures or right-sizing, addressing building or sustainability 
issues, or – oIen – a combinaDon of these changes. We address the change but – equally 
important – we seize the opportunity the change provides to do a kind of work that’s 
someDmes impossible to do otherwise. Change will naturally bring disrupDon, discomfort, 
anxiety, someDmes amping up to chaos, pain, and fear. But the vulnerability out of which these 
feelings arise is also an entry point – a kind of organizaDonal “cracking open” – for doing deeper 
work together. Change can be drawn upon as an opportune moment to confront deep-rooted 

Rational for Curriculum Revision

6



IMN – January 23, 2025 

issues or address un-dealt-with problems, or simply to help the organizaDon fully recognize its 
giIs and potenDal for the road ahead. So, capitalizing on the feelings of anxiety and 
vulnerability that naturally emerge out of the experience of change can help the organizaDon 
take its next faithful steps and become more resilient. 

But it’s not just change that transiDonal leaders draws on to do their work. We ground it in an 
understanding of the organizaDon as a system – a unique, dynamic network of connecDons in 
which individuals relate to others as friends and companions, but also as stakeholders and 
influencers. We apply to this what we know about how change impacts an organizaDon and 
how transiDons within it can best be achieved, and about how power is exercised and how it 
can be taken into consideraDon in the transiDon. 

Along the way, transiDonal leaders engage the organizaDon by helping it explore its: 

• heritage – how the organizaDon has been shaped
• leadership – its ways of organizing and effecDve leadership for a new Dme
• mission – defining or redefining its sense of purpose and direcDon
• connec9ons – all the relaDonships that it has built beyond itself
• future – preparing to thrive in a changing world, consistent with the organizaDon’s

purpose, strengths and areas for development

TransiDonal leaders aren’t fixers, arriving with experDse to solve the organizaDon’s problems. 
There is no recipe, blueprint, or 10-point plan for this work. Using road-tested tools, skills, and 
approaches, they lean into their curiosity about an organizaDon and bring to light what’s hidden 
in order that it might be helpfully considered or re-examined. They’re companion-leaders, 
focused on assessing what is and asking what might be, tending the organizaDon’s transiDon 
process. And they’re adapDve leaders, trained to disDnguish between technical problems that 
can be solved with well-established soluDons and the thorny challenges that require an 
organizaDon to adapt to new condiDons to find health, wholeness, and a viable future.   

CongregaDons and other faith-based organizaDons are reeling from the disrupDons caused by 
pandemic pressures and shiIing paUerns of parDcipaDon and religious affiliaDon that have been 
going on for years but are now having a more significant impact. So much is changing so fast, 
and even the most stable organizaDons may feel they are losing their way, wondering about 
what’s coming next and even whether they have a future.  

TransiDonal leaders can’t and won’t fix these problems. What they will do is stand with the 
organizaDon to help it face these changes, understand them and themselves, recognize their 
giIs and assets, and help them chart new direcDons toward which they can faithfully direct 
their energies. 

7



IMN – January 23, 2025 

Fundamentals of Transi1onal Leadership (FTL) Core Training 

Intended Outcomes 

As a consequence of the FTL Core Training, par7cipants will… 

Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of: 
• Systems theory
• Change/transi1on theory
• Conflict theory
• Inter-personal and group dynamics
• Power dynamics
• The impact/effects of trauma on an organiza1on
• Resources and tools available in the prac1ce of transi1onal leadership
• The value of collegial support
• Various modes of organiza1onal assessment
• The quali1es, best prac1ces, and professional standards of transi1onal leaders

Be able to: 
• Apply knowledge of systems, change, conflict, and trauma theories to the prac1ce of

transi1onal leadership
• Ask open-ended ques1ons
• Recognize systemic paHerns
• Stand on the perimeter and stay engaged (balcony to dance floor)
• Accept and engage in collabora1ve decision-making
• Find and prac1ce self-care in the prac1ce of transi1onal leadership
• Think strategically about leadership
• Use the resources and tools in the prac1ce of transi1onal leadership
• Recognize and respond appropriately to conflict issues
• Tend organiza1onal wounds
• Help build a bridge to the future
• Get out of the way
• U1lize all communica1on modes – including worship – as opportuni1es for tending

transi1onal processes
• Use organiza1onal assessments to further transi1onal goals
• Support the organiza1on’s development and ownership of iden1ty, mission, and vision
• Make a quick, posi1ve, and informed entry into the organiza1on’s system

8



IMN – January 23, 2025 

• Help the organiza1on iden1ty its strengths and recognize places where improvement is 
needed  

 
Begin to express key transi9onal leadership postures including:  

• High emo1onal, cultural, and spiritual intelligence 
• Ac1ng in a self-differen1ated manner 
• Being a non-anxious presence 
• Being non-defensive 
• Non-aHachment to outcomes 
• Leaning into curiosity 
• Respec1ng those you serve 
• Having comfort with ambiguity 
• Being open-minded 
• Demonstra1ng flexibility in forming and execu1ng plans 
• Clarity about whether this form of leadership is something for which you are well suited 

 
 

9



MAO edits October 6, 2025 

Fundamentals of TransiƟonal Leadership (FTL) –Module DescripƟons 

There are FTL courses for every pracƟƟoner, no maƩer their previous background in transiƟonal 
leadership.    
More informaƟon about FTL courses is available at:   
hƩps://imnedu.org/fundamentals-of-transiƟonal-leadership/ 

FTL EssenƟals  
FTL EssenƟals is comprised of Modules 1-3; this series of trainings (12 hours each) provides a 
solid foundaƟon for transiƟonal leadership. It is recommended for anyone who hasn’t taken 
transiƟonal leadership training previously or if it’s been more than 5 years since you had 
training.   

 Modules 1-3 must be taken in sequence to complete IMN transiƟonal leadership
training.

 Each module consists of 4 sessions, 3 hours each, spread out over 2- or 4-week periods.
 This 3-module series is offered several Ɵmes throughout the year, and both the series

and each module are available for group contract trainings.
 Note:  Viewing the FTL OrientaƟon Videos found on the IMN website is required before

registering for Module 1.   OrientaƟon IntroducƟon Videos may be found at:
hƩps://imnedu.org/fundamentals-of-transiƟonal-leadership/Ōl-introducƟon-videos/

The EssenƟals 

Module 1:  Thresholds – An InvitaƟon to TransiƟonal Leadership  
An introducƟon to transiƟonal leadership, including key principles, theories, postures, and 
professional standards. 

Module 2:  The Art & Science of TransiƟonal Leadership 
Expanding on the learning in Module 1, the second module focuses on the use of analyƟcal 
tools and techniques that explore power dynamics, organizaƟonal idenƟty and culture, the 
community context, as well as the broader work of seƫng the stage for leading change, such as 
culƟvaƟng a climate of change and idenƟfying adapƟve work.  

Module 3:  Leading the OrganizaƟon During TransiƟons 
Building on Modules 1 & 2, this module highlights how we work with others in the management 
of transiƟons, including organizaƟonal discernment, organizing and mobilizing for managing 
change, as well as deeper exploraƟon of how factors such as norms, lifeways, contextual shiŌs, 
and trauma impact transiƟons.    

Advanced FTL ConƟnuing EducaƟon  
The Advanced ConƟnuing EducaƟon modules (15 hours each) are for transiƟonal leaders who 
want to deepen their pracƟce or develop a specialty, expanding their ability to serve in a 
transiƟonal leader role. 

Each Advanced ConƟnuing EducaƟon module consists of 5-6 sessions, 3 hours each, over 3- to 
6-week periods. These modules will be offered 2-3 Ɵmes per year, and are available for group
contract trainings:

10



MAO edits October 6, 2025 

 EmoƟonal Intelligence & Group Dynamics
This module deepens a focus on the leader as a person in relaƟon to others by weaving
together group dynamics concepts and techniques and the emoƟonal intelligence (EQ)
aspects that undergird them.

 Conflict TransformaƟon
A module designed to help transiƟonal leaders grow in their ability to address and learn
from conflict in their communiƟes, as well as to guide their systems toward healthy
engagement.

 New Beginnings & Faithful Endings
This module focuses on the special transiƟonal leadership required to help a congregaƟon
consider shared ministry, amalgamaƟon (e.g., merger, union), or the possibility of
disbanding and legacy.

11



IMN DEIJB REFERENCE GROUP REPORT TO THE ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 

NOVEMBER 17, 2025 

Thank you to those who have already filled out the Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, Justice and Belonging 
(DEIJB) survey in the first round (Mid July to end of September) and this second round – currently open. 
We wonder whether IMN is who we say we are – an organisation which states that we seek and affirm 
inclusivity in living out our mission.  You, the members, provide the mirror for IMN leadership to be 
honest about who we are and where we need to go now. 

Your DEIJB Reference Group consisting of Ilana Garber (current Board member), Pegi Ridout (faculty), 
Mary Slenski (past Board member) and Jenny Stephens (chair of reference group and past President) 
supported by Crystal Wells, met with Credence and Co from March to June 2025. We clarified purpose, 
process, and communication. We shaped questions for the survey to membership and those we serve.  

We identified 8 focus groups and confirmed those with the IMN Board. We wanted to hear from those 
closest to the decision making and those who may perceive themselves as more on the margins. 
Considerable time was spent identifying the diversities whose perspectives we need to hear. The 
participants are self nominated through the survey and randomly selected by Credence and Co. We 
wanted to provide safe environments for honest conversations about the experience of inclusion 
and/or feeling shutdown. The Reference Group does not have access to the surveys nor who has 
volunteered for the focus groups – these are in the hands of Credence and Co.  

Their team of Cayla Charles, Simmi Hansra and Betty Pries have been great listeners and have 
reviewed written material provided to them about IMN including Board minutes, annual meeting 
documents, policies and other communications. They have been flexible as timelines have shifted. In 
early October, they let us know about insufficient response to populate the focus groups, so we re-
opened the surveys and determined focus groups would meet in January 2026. Following this the 
report will be written. You will have seen their letter of invitation in the material around the Annual 
Conference. 

The 8 focus groups are:  1) Board; (2) Faculty; (3) Staff; (4) BIPOC; (5) 2SLGBTQIA+; (6) members 
outside North America; (7) Jewish & Unitarian Universalist; (8) Neurodiverse. If you would like to offer 
your voice in a focus group, please ensure you fill out a survey and self identify. 

To those who have not yet completed the survey, please follow the QR code 
to access the survey and to indicate your willingness to participate in a focus 
group or follow this link: https://forms.office.com/r/0RekE636gf. If you’ve 
already completed the survey and would like to participate in a focus group, 
please email simmi@credenceandco.com. 

Thank you for taking the time to support this work within IMN. It is foundational and essential for 
effective teaching, formation of transitional leaders and good governance. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Jenny Stephens 

12

mailto:simmi@credenceandco.com


Interim Ministry Network 
Annual Membership Meeting 

November 18th 2024 

1. Call to order and Opening Reflection – Doug Duerr, President

Called to order with scripture at 3:03PM Eastern Time

Quorum Recognized with 38 participants on Zoom

• Remembrances
o Rabbi David Klatzker, an IMN trained interim whose passion and

persistence helped establish IMN’s current relationship with Conservative
Judaism.

o Helen Prior, United Church of Canada intentional interim minister, IMN
Faculty, leader of many IMN webinars and workshops, and strong advocate
for IMN and interim ministry in her denomination.

o Rev. Dr. Ronald Irons

2. November 8, 2023 Membership Meeting Minutes Approval – Doug Duerr

Moved by Holly MillerShank, Secretary, Seconded by Jenny Stephens. Approved.

3. Acknowledgment of Volunteer Leaders – Marvin Morgan, Vice President

Appreciation of IMN Staff, Ellen Goudy, Jonathan New and Crystal Wells; Faculty and
Teams: Annual Conference, Continuing Education, Education, Fundraising.  Thank you,
Team Leads, Dave Clements, Cynthia Vermillion-Foster, Alren Vernava and Margret
O’Neall and to Doug Duerr for his year of leadership as the President of the IMN Board.

4. Nominating Report and Election of Board Members – Doug Duerr

• Rob McFarlane, of the Uniting Church in Australia, began his service with the
Board by taking an uncompleted term that ended in 2024. Therefore, he will be
standing for re-election to a first full board term ending in 2027.

• Standing for re-election, with a second term ending in 2027, is Shannon Mang,
of the United Church of Canada.

• We also have two nominees to fill open board positions, with a first term ending
in 2027. Full bios can be found in the Board Meeting Packet.

o Cynthia Vermillion-Foster, Unity
o Dave Clements, Unitarian Universalist Association

Doug Duerr moved the slate as President, Second Mary Ellen Dolan. Approved 

Appreciation to Julie Harris, Katrina Palan, Mary Slenski and John Stonesifer for their 
leadership as they step down from leadership on the IMN Board.  

13



2025 Officers 

• President – Holly MillerShank
• Vice President – Doug Duerr
• Secretary – Shannon Mang
• Treasurer – Margret O’Neall

5. Financial Report – Margret O’Neall, Treasurer

• 2023 Financial Audit
• 2023 saw lower than anticipated enrollment in the annual conference which caused

a shortfall in overall revenue.
• 2024 Financial Highlights
• 2024 had lower than anticipated enrollment in core trainings, this could be because

of the roll out of the new curriculum in 2025, however this loss of revenue required
monies from reserves to meet the budget. We have a strong sense of financial
oversight going into 2025. We continue to need to seek multiple revenue streams
including grants and the building of an endowment.

6. Strategic Updates – Doug Duerr and Jonathan New, Executive Director

Full information is provided in the board packet for this meeting.

• IMN’s transition/adaptation, we are all in a change and transition space both
within the communities we serve and within IMN itself.

• DEIJB Betty Pries with Credence and Co and staff, Betty was the keynoter for our
2024 annual conference– support as we “Live more fully into our values in which all
people can find belonging and witness transformation within ourselves and thus
throughout the organization and beyond…”

• Annual Conference:
o 100+ attendees, 33 first-timers
o 7 countries
o 16 denominations
o 40 individuals made it possible

• EQHR In 2025 we will be integrating the legacy of EQHR center including EQ
trainings both in person and on-line as well as EQ content into our core curriculum

• Judicatory Relationship – judicatory focused ETL trainings, 12 hour general
introductions to the work of transitional leadership. 3 were offered in 2024, 5 are
scheduled for 2025.

14



• Faculty- 3 retirements of faculty (John Stonesifer, Norman Bendroth, Bill Thomas),
one loss in the death of Helen Prior, 5 new apprentices are now full faculty
members, and we have 2 additional apprentices in the pipeline.

• New Curriculum Roll-out will take place in the first quarter of 2025, outcomes
based, modular, and online.

7. Membership Discussion – Doug Duerr

What are the changes you see in your setting, denomination, and/or the wider
context of religion and congregational life that call on IMN to respond in new ways?

Room 1  

• challenges of being trained and ready to serve but having to wait months
between appointments – there is a disconnect between the real needs for
transitional ministers in congregations and denominational systems not
functioning in matching Interim Ministers and Congregations in need.

• two in the group are interested in Part time interim ministry – and willing to do
Interim ministry differently

• Jonathon spoke to us about the exciting offering of special training for judicatory
staff with ETL in one of the denominations-we would love to see this in all of our
denominations.

Room 2 

• nature of religion
• aging demographic
• generational shift – different priorities
• less affiliation to specific denomination
• divisions especially in responses to election
• divisions are entrenched - no interest in compromise
• polarized
• 2SLGBTQIA vs. cis-heterosexual
• microaggressions
• trauma, spiritual trauma, PTSD from religious experiences
• more intercultural within congregations and interfaith connections
• economic distress

15



Room 3 

• Curriculum and membership stats – IM “network” – how are relationships
fostered beyond online? Need to better support virtual support groups? A
marketing piece?

• Seeing less focus on trained interim clergy – more have (Episcopal) “priest in
charge” who may stay. Importance of that skill set even for those who are
staying. Don’t want a leadership vacuum. May be lack of education in
congregations about what that transitional leadership is Seeing more of that in
last 2-3 years.

• Fewer ‘settled’ ministries, more contract. Some result in contract-to-call.
• We need sustaining communities. All about relationships.
• Curriculum – opportunities for many (career interim and others) to get training in

critical areas like conflict management, systems.
• Church of England – what congregation and priest can bring one another. But

how much is about money?
• One of the tools is having a network to rely on, to deal with the general upheaval.

Room 4 

• training for lay leaders
• seeing polarity in our overall community
• Christian nationalism influences
• be careful about conflict resolution strategies
• Prep for dealing with the changing landscape in America political landscape
• Preach!
• Betty Pries, The Space Between Us
• The church cracked open is by Stephanie Spellers

Room 5 

• Revisioning what the church can be is a honed skill but developing the skills to
help people get to that new vision is vital. Inviting new people to become “Boots
on the ground” agents who are trained in transitional/interim ministry to lead
that change.

• Power dynamics management that include gender dynamics seems to be harder
these days.

• Collaborative ministry opportunities and the balance between clergy-led and
lay-led congregations; when a congregation has become lay-led over time, what
kinds of clergy resources might be needed; is it possible to welcome clergy again
after being lay-led and how could it be done well?

16



• Retired clergy convocation within IMN to assist with boundaries and ways to
offer gifts appropriately when one has IMN training. How to develop new models
within judicatories to embrace the gifts and willingness of trained interims on
their terms.

• FT pastor/PT interim as a model
• So many churches living on the edge of financial disaster
• the need to reintroduce Interim Ministry to congregations that either haven’t had

need for a long time or whose last interim(s) didn’t do the work.
• After all the other horrible, community-shattering promised actions like mass

deportation, the economic collapse could be the end of a lot of congregations

 Room 6 

• Conflict/ Conflict resolution, dying off

Start With Why - https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=u4ZoJKF_VuA 

• Our "Why" is our purpose as a worshipping community; what is our charism?;
what is the unique ministry to which we are called in our context.

• I spent the first 4 months in my congregation asking "Why are we doing this
program?" Who does it serve and how does it help us build community and
belonging.

• I remember a TED talk called Lead with the Why

8. Membership Discussion Groups and Reporting – Doug Duerr

General Discussion: 

• There are polarities within our general culture that are being lived out within our
communities of faith

• Matriarchs/Patriarchs wanting to hold on to the past that is no longer reflective
of the community.

• All communities, not just specific interims, are dealing with change
• Book recommendation from a group: The Church Cracked Open
• Training needed for lay leaders, smaller congregations are concerned and

worried but might need additional support
• Disciples of Christ is working on a video to introduce the role of an Interim

Minister
• Larger trends around amalgamations

17

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=u4ZoJKF_VuA


• Variety of experiences when leadership comes from up front (sometimes by
judicatory leaders) or from behind (congregational vision).

• Transitional Practitioner lead not strictly within the religious community but with
the role within any organization that is experiencing change and need skills in
change management

• The impact of micro-aggressions, particularly as spiritual seekers. Those who
have experienced trauma.

• Retired clergy are perhaps not being used effectively across denominations- 
could IMN offer courses for Retired Clergy who find themselves serving churches
experiencing significant change?

• The role of transitional leaders as consultants, not just the model of full-time
employed leaders as the interim ministers.

• Physically moving is happening differently than in prior eras
• Increasingly people are not thinking rationally and logically but are instead

reacting emotionally, perhaps we can make more space for grief work.
• Helping community address the question: What is your WHY?
• Continued need for IMN practitioners to stay connected and into relationship

with one another.

9. 2024 Annual Appeal – Margret O’Neall

 Annual Appeal publicly launches today, give your support to the important work of 
IMN: The Annual Appeal supports Curriculum Revision, Scholarships, Emotional 
Intelligence, DEIJB 

100% of IMN Board, Team Leads and Staff have made gifts already of $9,500. 48% of 
our way to our goal for 2024.  

Note: Annual Conference 2025 will be October 28-30, virtual to support 
participation and affordability.  

10. Covenanting

The whole of the meeting participated in a covenanting liturgy, releasing Doug Duerr 
from the presidency, and Holly into the role. The Faculty, Team Leads and Board 
Covenanted together for the year ahead.  

11. Adjournment, 4:48pm ET

Respectfully Submitted Holly MillerShank, Secretary 

18



A. IMN By-law Revision 

Background: When initially composed, our IMN By-laws assumed that the Annual 
Membership Meeting of the organization would take place concurrently with the Annual 
Conference. This worked well when Annual Conference’s took place in-person. Since COVID 
we have moved to a virtual format and have separated out the Annual Conference from the 
Annual Meeting. We need to de-couple these two distinct gatherings in our bylaws to have 
an accurate counting of quorum.  

Details: Below is the specific language for review. The lines struck through are original 
language to be removed and replaced with the wording in red.  

Section 4: Quorum and Voting 

Each voting member in good standing shall have one vote at any meeting of the members. A 
quorum shall consist of 30 active members or 10% of total voting members, whichever is 
fewer. forty percent (40%) of the total voting members present in person at the Annual 
Conference. Members present shall include those participating in person as well as those 
participating via live electronic means. A majority of the votes cast at a meeting at which a 
quorum is present shall constitute the action of the members. Voting rights of a member 
shall not be delegated to another and there shall be no proxy votes.  Cumulative voting shall 
not be allowed. Unless twenty percent (20%) or more of all members qualified to vote is 
present in person, the only matters that may be voted upon at a meeting of the membership 
are those matters that are described in the meeting notice or at the beginning of the Annual 
Membership Meeting.  

 

 

19



 
2025-2026 IMN Board of Director Nominees 

 
Elect for a 3-year term 
Rev. Dr. Keith Copeland has served as an Evangelical Lutheran Church in America 
(ELCA) Pastor for 30 years. He has served as settled pastor in 4 congregations and 
as the interim pastor of 14 congregations in 3 different denominations. In addition, 
he coaches leaders in communities of faith who are leading in times of transition as 
well as those experiencing personal and professional transitions. Keith is active on 
several IMN teams and projects and is the ELCA’s Interim Ministry Association Board 
Chair. 

 
 
Elect for a 3-year term 
Rev. Jeffrey A. Nelson is the Minister for Ministerial Calls and Transitions for the 
United Church of Christ, with over 15 years as a local church pastor in northeast 
Ohio. He holds a Bachelor's in Religion from Heidelberg University and a Master of 
Divinity from Eden Theological Seminary. Trained as a spiritual director, he focuses 
on Christian spirituality, aiming to educate and connect the transcendent to everyday 
life. His latest book, The Unintentional Interim: Ministry in Times of Transition, was  

to released, alongside other works on spirituality and pop culture 
 

 
Elect for a 3-year term 
Rev. Jack Shitama is the Director of the Center for Vital Leadership, which serves 
the Peninsula-Delaware and Baltimore-Washington Conferences of The United 
Methodist Church (UMC). He is an ordained UMC minister and has served as pastor 
of churches in Port Deposit, MD and Chesapeake City, MD. 
 
Jack is the author of four books: Anxious Church, Anxious People: How to Lead 

Change in an Age of Anxiety, One New Habit, One Big Goal: Change Your Life in 10 Weeks. If You Met 
My Family You’d Understand: A Family Systems Primer, Everyone Loves a Non-Anxious Presence: Calm 
Down, Grow Up, and Live Your Best Life. His website is the www.thenonanxiousleader.com. His 
podcast, The Non-Anxious Leader podcast is available on all platforms. 
 

Elect for a 3-year term 
Rev. Carolyn Woodall is an ordained Intentional Interim Minister of The United 
Church of Canada. Her experience includes three settled pastoral charges and three 
Interim appointments over 35 years. Her passion is exploring the 
cultural/political/social contexts of the biblical texts, especially Pauline and prophetic, 
so that the ancient words might speak again boldly to the circumstances of our own 
times.  
 

 
Elect for a second 3-year term 
Rev. Patrice K. Curtis is UUA’s Transformational Interim Ministries Director. Patrice 
collaborates with and supports interim ministers in amplifying and practicing diversity, 
equity, and inclusion within congregations, and in disrupting unhealthy patterns that 
make Beloved Community difficult to realize. Before beginning ministry at the 
Unitarian Universalist Association (UUA), Patrice served four congregations and as 
Program Director with the UU Justice Ministry of California. Patrice practices Tibetan 

Buddhist-based spirituality (20+years), has trained in teaching Shamata meditation, and studied 
Mindful Self-Compassion, and Mindfulness-Based Stress Reduction (MBSR). 

20

http://www.thenonanxiousleader.com/


Board Members Concluding Their Terms – Thank you for your Service! 
 

 
Rev. Holly MillerShank is an energetic and committed member of the body of 
Christ. She was raised at Myerstown UCC in Penn Central Conference. She has 
served the church in various capacities; as a Global Ministries Volunteer in India 
and Korea, with the UCC’s advocacy office in Washington DC, as a member of 
the Local Church Ministries Board of Directors and as a Trustee for Lancaster 
Theological Seminary. Holly has a BA in International Relations and Business 
from American University and an M.Div. from Lancaster Theological Seminary. 

She has worked Witness for Peace and in interim settings both in local church and middle 
judicatory roles. For a decade Holly served as the Minister and Team Leader for the Ministerial 
Excellence, Support and Authorization (MESA) Ministry Team in the UCC’s national offices. Called 
in 2022, Holly currently serves as the Senior Minister of First Congregational Church, UCC in 
Shrewsbury Massachusetts.  
 

Rev. Dr. Marvin L. Morgan began serving as a Senior Pastor a age twenty-
one. He currently serves Church of the Red Rocks, UCC, in Sedona, AZ, his 
seventh interim position in fourteen years. During his studies at Elon University 
(B.A. 1971), Duke Divinity School (M. Div. 1975), Drew University (D. Min. 
1979), and during post-graduate studies at Auburn Seminary and Harvard, he 
was simultaneously a full-time pastor. Service as Head Chaplain for the Atlanta 
Police Department, a staff Chaplain with Fulton County, GA, Adjunct Faculty and 
Administrator at Interdenominational Theological Center, in Atlanta, GA were all 

meaningful experiences in ministry. However, he found his most fulfilling niche, about fifteen 
years ago, when Les Robinson introduced him to the exciting world of Interim Ministry.  
 
 
Board Members Remaining on the Board 
 

Rev. Doug Duerr is an ordained minister with the Association of Unity 
Churches and has served in leadership with Unity Worldwide Ministries and as a 
settled and Intentional Interim Minister. He aligns with IMN as an organization 
dedicated to “strengthen the spiritual and organizational health of faith 
communities by equipping and supporting those who lead during times of 
transition.” Doug is passionate about the value of the interim period and the 
substantial results of effective transitional guidance and leadership. He currently 
serves as a Ministry Consultant, Student Cohort Leader, Coach, Transition 

Specialist, and Intentional Interim Minister with a focus on organizational change and 
transition. Doug’s passion for organizational development, education, and process consulting are 
evident in his work. Rev. Doug is a faculty member for the Unity seminary teaching courses on 
purpose, leadership, and mediation skills. He is a published author and is Dare to 
Lead Trained™ from Brené Brown. His latest book, Resonance, is filled with daily devotionals 
inspired by his original photography depicting God’s beauty in nature that is often missed in the 
busyness of life. His ministry is grounded in   “Unlocking the creative genius of communities and 
co-creating a culture of belonging.” 
 

21

https://dougduerr.com/5-basics/
https://dougduerr.com/5-basics/


Rabbi Ilana C. Garber is the Senior Director of Rabbinic Leadership for the 
Rabbinical Assembly, a global membership organization of over 1,600 rabbis 
who are associated with the Conservative/Masorti Movement of Judaism. 
Previously, she served the synagogue community of Beth El Temple (West 
Hartford, CT) for fifteen years. A graduate from the double degree program of 
List College (Talmud) and Barnard College (Religion) in 2000, she received her 
MA from the Wm. Davidson Graduate School of Jewish Education in 2003, and 

was ordained by the Jewish Theological Seminary in 2005. A visionary Jewish educator, Rabbi 
Garber created SULAM (Seek, Understand, Learn, Act, Marvel) in a complete overhaul of Beth El 
Temple’s religious school. Passionate about the mikveh, she wrote the curriculum to train mikveh 
guides for Boston’s Mayyim Hayyim: Living Waters Community Mikveh. Currently she serves on 
the board of Greater Hartford’s Mikveh Bess Israel. Rabbi Garber has been recognized as a leader 
throughout her career. In 2007, she was named a “Mover & Shaker” by the CT Jewish Ledger. 
She received the inaugural Arnold Zar-Kessler Outstanding Alumni Award from Solomon 
Schechter Day School of Greater Boston in 2014. Ilana is married to Dr. Adam Berkowitz, a web 
developer, and they are raising their two sons in West Hartford, CT. She has written about 
Jewish parenting, raising a child with special needs, and being a cancer survivor – all at the same 
time. 
 
 

Rev. Shannon Mang, based in Western Canada, has been in paid accountable 
Ministry since 1989.She did the Intentional Interim Ministry training early in her 
career, and her first formal IIM was at Trochu-Elnora, Alberta in 1994-1995. She 
applied Interim Ministry tools and skills to several short-term appointments, and 
to a ten-year ministry with St. Andrews United Church in Calgary, re-entering 
formal IIM with Living Spirit United Church, Calgary (2017-2020). At present, 
she enjoys life in the Rocky Mountains in Canmore, Alberta and is doing a virtual 

IIM with St Andrew’s United Church in Markham, Ontario, some 2000 miles/3500 km away, 
teaming with an “on-the-ground” ministry partner. Raised in the United Church of Canada and 
ordained in 2005, Shannon brings significant ecumenical experiences: as a steward at the 1983 
World Council of Churches meeting in Vancouver, as a student at an ecumenical seminary 
(Vancouver School of Theology), as a college chaplain (joint United-Presbyterian at the University 
of Calgary), and as a Director of Religious Exploration with the Calgary Unitarians. She is drawn 
to justice and contemplative practice, is an avid singer and learner, and one who loves to play in 
the snow.  
 
 

The Rev. Dr. Robert McFarlane serves as Presbytery Ministry Leader within 
the Parramatta Nepean Presbytery – PNP – (Synod of NSW and the Australian 
Capital Territory – NSW/ACT – within the Uniting Church in Australia). PNP has 
60 congregations with 35 ministers, serving a region of 2,000,000 in western 
Sydney, characterized by cultural diversity and new housing areas. This means 
that he works with congregations to help them be as healthy in their own life, 
and as strong in their mission and service in their communities as they can be. 
Rob also works with ministers to help them be as spiritually and emotionally 

healthy as possible, and as effective in their ministry as they, too, can be. Rob oversees the 
placement of ministers in congregations (including IIM), continuing education for ministry, and 
ministry retreats. He also works with congregations in mission planning and discernment using 
IIM-related skills, notably Appreciative Inquiry and Asset Mapping.  
 

22



Rev. Dr. Margret O’Neall an accredited Interim Minister and Professional 
Transition Specialist serving Unitarian Universalist churches in times of transition 
and development. Margret holds academic degrees in Community Development 
and Sociology and earned her Master of Divinity from Meadville-Lombard 
Theological School. She entered intentional interim ministry following a 35-year 
career working in the public and private sectors, and her call to ministry follows 
her passion for the transformation process that individuals and organizations 
may engage with intention in times of change. Since entering the ministry in 

2009, Margret has served interim ministries in Sarasota, FL; Buffalo, NY; Schenectady, NY and 
Phoenix, AZ, and is now serving a 5-year Developmental Ministry in the Unitarian Universalist 
church in Cherry Hill, NJ. Margret is a member of the IMN faculty. 
 
 

Rev. Kate Young has served in ministry in the United Church of Canada since 
1987. From the large cattle ranches of south Saskatchewan to the silver and 
copper mines of the near north in Ontario, in rural, urban, and suburban 
congregations, single, and multi point, small, medium, and large congregations 
she has always found people dedicated to serving God and neighbor, especially 
through change and transition. A proud mom of 3 grown daughters, a nana of 3 
small grandsons, Kate and her husband Neil make their home in Mississauga, 
Ontario. She has just completed her first official intentional interim position with 

a Toronto congregation. Kate has lots of experience in governance and judicatory boards at all 
levels of the church.   
 
 
IMN Office Staff 

 
Ellen Goudy 
Membership/Education Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Crystal Wells 
Program/Finance Manager 
Conference Coordinator 

23



 

      

 

 

 

Report of Independent Auditors 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Interim Ministry Network, Inc. (a 
non-profit organization). In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material aspects, the financial position of the Interim Ministry Network, Inc. as of December 31, 2024. 

Bechanan & Company 
Certified Public Accountants  

March 24, 2025 

24



 

IMN Annual Appeal Request 

 
We live in a time of social and religious transition, as technological, economic and social 
networks create a global wave of interconnected transformations that continue to 
challenge our norms, expectations and systems. 
 
The IMN has long been a leader in equipping faith leaders for the work of transition, 
and in these times, we are moving with even greater intention into the work of 
transformative education and expanding our resources to non-ordained leaders. This 
work is shifting us as a network, and the support of our members is more imperative 
than ever in this vital enterprise. 
 
Your year-end contribution will support our mission coming to life, through the 
Intentional Transformation Annual Appeal to fund IMN’s mission, which includes these 
values for 2026: 
  

• Curriculum Innovation – Continuing to roll out the new modular core 
FTL courses and expanding to new audiences, to ensure that IMN’s training 
is as accessible, relevant, and robust as possible for today’s transitional 
leadership challenges.  

  
• Specialized Offerings for Emerging Challenges - New courses 

offerings in Conflict Transformation, and New Beginnings and Faithful 
Endings offer crucial understandings as the landscape of congregational life 
continues to change.  

  
• DEIJB – We are deepening our efforts to live our values as we seek to the 

be the diverse, equitable, inclusive, and just organization in which all 
people can find belonging.  

  
IMN is rising to meet each challenge with education and colleague support services that 
respond to the emerging issues of today. As a beneficiary of IMN’s education and 
support, we invite you to make it possible for you and others to continue to benefit in 
these vital ways.  
  
Support IMN’s mission by making a financial gift today.  Thank you for your 
generosity!  

 
25

https://imnedu.org/annual-appeal/


Mission Statement 
Interim Ministry Network

Preamble 

For millions of people, faith communities nurture spiritual development and 
community.  In our ever-evolving society, change affects religious bodies within and 
without.  Change offers these bodies opportunities to focus on their health through self- 
evaluation and renewal.  The body can move toward clarity of mission, greater 
cohesiveness, spiritual growth and positive acceptance of new leadership with the 
guidance of a person trained in intentional interim ministry. 

Mission 

The Interim Ministry Network strengthens the spiritual and organizational health of 
faith communities by equipping and supporting those who lead during times of 
transition. 

Vision 

As a result of work of the Interim Ministry Network, faith communities are stronger 
because they have effectively managed transition and are better able to share with their 
members and society God’s love that brings hope and joy in times of change. 

Core Values 

• Providing praxis-oriented education and training for clergy and lay leaders

• Providing learning experiences that reflect professionalism, excellence, and

innovation

• Seeking and affirming inclusivity in living out the mission

• Strengthening faith communities

• Building healthy relationships among colleagues and within faith communities

1001 Frederick Road, Box 21036 
Catonsville, Maryland 21228, 410-719-0777 

IMN Mission and Vision affirmed by the Interim Ministry Network Board of Directors, November 2011 and adopted Core 
Values, March 2012. Updated August 2018. 

26


	Table of contents.pdf
	2025 Annual Meeting Package.pdf
	2025 IMN Annual Membership Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2025 IMN Presidents Report.pdf
	Fundamentals of Transitional Leadership Training.pdf
	What IMN Means By Transitional Leadership.pdf
	FTL Intended Outcomes.pdf
	FTL Modules Descriptions.pdf

	DEIJB Report to Nov 2025 Annual Membership meeting.pdf
	2024 Mintues Annual Membership Meeting.pdf
	BYLaw Revision Quorum.pdf
	2025 Board Nomminees .pdf
	IMN Board changes and staff 2025.pdf
	Audit 2024.pdf
	2025 annual appeal message cc.pdf
	IMN Mission and Vision August 2018 updated 2024.pdf




